
  

Page 1 of 6 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
Board Meeting Minutes 

Meeting Date:  October 8, 2018 
 
 
A special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 5:30 
p.m., Monday, October 8, 2018, at the District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  President Jerry Peters, Directors Carole Dillon-Knutson, 
William Long, Jean Mariani, and Brant Miller.  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  General Manager-Secretary Sandeep Karkal, and Administrative 
Secretary Julie Hoover.   
 
ALSO PRESENT:    Dee Johnson, Solid and Hazardous Waste Program Coordinator 
  Erik Brown, Deputy General Manager, NSD 
  John O’Hare, Project Manager, Veolia 
  John Bailey, Assistant Project Manager, Veolia 
  Jeff Andress, Collections System Superintendent, NSD 
  Alex DiGiorgio, Community Development, Marin Clean Energy 
  Garen Kazanjian, Waste Zero Specialist, Recology Sonoma-Marin 

Dale Thrasher, Administrative Services Officer, NSD 
  Gary Butler, Novato Resident 
  Jeff Boheim, Field Services Manager, NSD 
  Fred Stemmler, General Manager, Recology Sonoma-Marin 
           
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:  The General Manager stated that item 10.a. should be corrected as 
follows:  North Bay Watershed Association (NBWA) meeting, October 5, 2018.  The agenda 
was approved as modified. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  The General Manager stated that prior to the meeting, Clean Energy 
Advocates Sarah Loughran and Helene Marsh, provided a letter for presentation at the 
Board meeting.  He stated that each Board member had been given a copy, and that copies 
were also available for any members of the public present. 
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 
- Consider approval of minutes of the September 17, 2018 regular meeting.   
 
On motion of Director Mariani, seconded by Director Dillon-Knutson, and carried 
unanimously, the September 17, 2018 Regular meeting minutes were approved. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
Director Miller requested that item 5.e. be removed from the Consent Calendar for further 
consideration.   
 



Novato Sanitary District  
Board Meeting Minutes 
Meeting Date: October 8, 2018 
 

 
Page 2 of 6 

President Peters then called for a motion on the remaining Consent Calendar items as 
follows:  
  

a. Approve Board member disbursements in the amount of $1,430.93, capital project 
disbursements in the amount of $348,786.47, and regular disbursements in the 
amount of $354,026.55. Ratification of September 24th capital project 
disbursements in the amount of $421,343.41, and regular disbursements in the 
amount of $360,272.73.  

b. Ratification of September payroll and payroll related disbursements in the amount 
of $275,394.75. 

c. Receive deposit summary, September 2018. 
d. Receive report on payment of $51,532 to Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) 

as the District’s FY 18-19 share of the cost of the NBWRA Phase 2 Feasibility 
Study – information only. 

 
On motion of Director Miller, seconded by Director Mariani, and carried unanimously, the 
Board approved the above listed Consent Calendar items. 
 
President Peters stated that the Board would now consider item 5.e.:  Approve a cost-
sharing Agreement with Oakmont of Novato, LLC – Johnson Street Sewer Line Project in 
the amount of $55,448, and authorize the Board President and the General Manager-Chief 
Engineer to execute it. 
 
The General Manager stated that if Director Miller had not pulled item 5.e. from the Consent 
Calendar, he would have done so because a minor change was necessary. He stated that 
on page two, paragraph one of the agreement (page 31 of the agenda packet), the 
sentence should be amended as follows:  “…been approved by the District’s Board of 
Directors General Manager – Chief Engineer.”  At this correction, Director Miller stated he 
had no additional comments. 
 
On motion of Director Miller, seconded by Director Dillon-Knutson, and carried unanimously, 
the Board approved amended Consent Calendar item 5.e.:  Approve a cost-sharing 
Agreement with Oakmont of Novato, LLC-Johnson Street Sewer Line Project in the amount 
of $55,448, and authorize the Board President and the General Manager-Chief Engineer to 
execute it. 
 
SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS: 
 
- Receive Solid Waste Committee report, meeting of September 25, 2018. 
 
- Receive Solid Waste Committee recommendation for a Calendar Year (CY) 2019 
maximum solid waste rate adjustment of +3.35 percent. 
 
The General Manager stated that the Solid Waste Committee comprising of Members 
Mariani and Peters, met on September 25th.  He stated that the Committee received the first 
and second quarterly report from Recology Sonoma/Marin (RSM), as well as 
disposal/diversion reports for 2018.  He stated that the Committee also reviewed a solid 
waste rate adjustment request from RSM of +3.35 percent for CY 2019, as well as a third 
party report analyzing RSM’s request, prepared by R3 Consulting Group (R3).  He stated 



Novato Sanitary District  
Board Meeting Minutes 
Meeting Date: October 8, 2018 
 

 
Page 3 of 6 

that the R3 report concurs with RSM’s request and recommends that the District grant a 
solid waste rate adjustment of +3.35 percent.   
 
The General Manager stated that upon review, the Committee concurs with the R3 report 
and recommends that, subsequent to the appropriate public hearing process, the Board 
consider approval of a CY 2019 solid waste rate adjustment of +3.35%.   
 
Dee Johnson and Garen Kazanjian responded to questions from the Board. Fred Stemmler 
discussed changes in the Asian and European recycling markets, and reasons for the 
decline in paper and recycled cardboard products being accepted there. 
 
On motion of Director Long, seconded by Director Dillon-Knutson, and carried unanimously, 
the Board received the Solid Waste Committee report of September 25th, and received the 
Committee’s recommendation for a Calendar Year 2019 maximum solid waste rate 
adjustment of +3.35 percent. 
 
At 5:57 p.m., Fred Stemmler, Garen Kazanjian, and Dee Johnson left the meeting. 
 
MARIN CLEAN ENERGY (MCE): 
 
- Receive recommendation on switching District electricity accounts from Pacific Gas & 
Electric Co. (PG&E) to MCE Clean Energy, select desired service option (light green or 
deep green), and if applicable adopt Resolution 3128 – A Resolution to Switch from Pacific 
Gas & Electric Company to MCE Clean Energy utilizing the MCE Deep Green Option. 
The General Manager stated that at the September 17th Board meeting, MCE staff 
presented the results of their electricity rate comparison study for the District’s facilities.  He 
stated that the District’s consultant, Enovity, Inc., also presented the results of its 
independent electricity rate comparison study which supported switching District electricity 
accounts from PG&E to MCE’s Light Green option on a cost basis.  The General Manager 
stated that selecting MCE’s Light Green option would potentially result in a savings of about 
$27,000 per year, while selecting MCE’s Dark Green option would potentially result in an 
additional cost of about $22,000 per year. 
 
The General Manager stated that if the Board wished to utilize the Deep Green option, even 
though it may not be as cost effective to do so at this time, District Legal Counsel and staff 
were not currently aware of any statutory reasons that precluded the Board from doing so 
for other valid, non-economic reasons.  He stated that draft Resolution #3128 had been 
prepared if the Board wished to adopt the MCE Deep Green option. 
 
Director Long stated that a move to MCE’s Light Green option made sense economically, 
but that the move to the Deep Green option would come at a cost differential of 
approximately $50,000 per year.  He stated that based on the data presented, there 
appears to be only a small percentage difference in the reduction of fossil fuel energy 
between the deep green and light green options.  Director Long suggested that the funds 
saved by going to MCE’s Light Green program could be used to advance a self-power-
generation program at the District. 
 
Director Dillon-Knutson noted that she agreed with Director Long’s comments.   
 



Novato Sanitary District  
Board Meeting Minutes 
Meeting Date: October 8, 2018 
 

 
Page 4 of 6 

President Peters stated that he had no objection to MCE’s Deep Green option.  He stated 
that as variables change in the future, the District may wish to revisit the issue.  He then 
asked the General Manager if he could provide a brief status update on the District’s 
cogeneration project. 
 
The General Manager noted that in 2017, the District requested, and Veolia provided, an 
analysis of funding a cogeneration project internally.  Their findings revealed that without 
any external funding sources or grants, the project was not economically feasible.  He 
stated that this finding was consistent with staff’s understanding of treatment facilities 
similar in size to the District.  However, he noted that aside from economics, independence 
from grid/utility power (whether from PG&E or MCE) is also a valid reason to implement 
cogeneration projects. He stated that, therefore, while staff is continuing to explore funding 
opportunities to implement an economical cogeneration project, staff will also be exploring 
viable cogeneration options that would provide some energy independence to the District. 
The conversation concluded with general thoughts from the Board members on potential 
future cogeneration options. 
 
On motion of Director Miller, seconded by Director Dillon-Knutson and carried unanimously, 
the Board approved switching all the District’s electricity accounts from PG&E to MCE 
Clean Energy utilizing the MCE’s Light Green option and authorized the General Manager-
Chief Engineer to execute agreements as required to make the switch. 
 
At 6:14 p.m. Alex DiGiorgio left the meeting 
 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 
 
- Receive Wastewater Operations Reports, September 2018. 
 
Collection System Report:  The Collection System Superintendent provided the Collections 
System Report for September 2018.  He stated that the Collection Department cleaned 
52,137 lineal feet of sewer pipelines, and that 10,197 feet of sewer main were televised. He 
stated that CCTV (closed circuit TV) work did not identify any new structural damages or 
areas that would require a change in sewer line maintenance operations.  He stated that 
staff completed 254 maintenance work orders, leaving zero work orders outstanding.  He 
continued, stating that staff conducted 151 lift station inspections and completed 
maintenance inspections on six air relief/vacuum valves. 
 
The Collection System Superintendent then outlined the training provided in September, 
noting that the Collection Department staff attended four (4) safety tailgate meetings.  He 
stated that he attended the Annual Tri-State Seminar in Reno, Nevada, September 25-27th, 
and commented that the training provided was very valuable.  He continued, providing 
details of miscellaneous projects completed by department staff.  He stated that there were 
no lost time accidents in the month. 
 
The Collection System Superintendent stated that one sanitary sewer overflow (SSO) took 
place on September 24th at an in-construction housing development on Hamilton Parkway.  
Upon investigation, Collection System staff discovered that a column of concrete had been 
driven through a District’s pipe, likely as a result of the construction of a foundation column 



Novato Sanitary District  
Board Meeting Minutes 
Meeting Date: October 8, 2018 
 

 
Page 5 of 6 

for a retaining wall being placed over the pipe.  He stated that an estimated 750 gallons 
were released, all contained on the dirt pad at the construction site. 
 
Treatment Facilities Report:  Veolia Project Manager, John O’Hare, provided the September 
2018 Treatment Facilities Monthly Operations Report (MOR).  He reviewed the treatment 
plant performance, and noted that the average flow for September was low, at 3.36 million 
gallons/day.  He stated that discharge transitioned from reclamation storage to Bay 
discharge on September 1st.  He continued, stating that there were no discharge violations 
in September, but that one air permit excursion took place on September 25th.  He noted 
that the excursion was due to “a low flare temperature and failure to restart during the 
allowable timeframe”.  He noted that the incident is being evaluated for a violation by the 
Bay Area Air Quality Management District.   
 
The Project Manager stated that the Recycled Water Facility (RWF) was running at peak 
performance and produced 27.617 million gallons of recycled water during the month.  Mr. 
O’Hare reviewed the monthly routine inspections and maintenance activities for the Novato 
treatment facility, the Ignacio transfer pump station, and the recycled water facility.  He 
stated that Veolia Water Environmental Services Supervisor Liz Falejczyk attended the 
State of California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP), TNI 2016 
Standard Training Series/Session 4 of 6 trainings, and that Kurt Hawkyard, Veolia Water 
Laboratory Technician, attended Session 2 of 6. He discussed pretreatment and pollution 
prevention activities, and concluded his presentation, stating that no odor contacts were 
received in September. 
 
The General Manager provided an update on the Odor Control Facilities upgrade project 
(odor bed media replacement project).  He stated that the media replacement for Odor 
Control Bed #2 is proceeding well and that the project will likely be completed earlier than 
anticipated by the contractor Cagwin & Dorward. 
 
Reclamation Facilities Report:  The Field Services Manager summarized the Reclamation 
Facilities report for September.  He stated that pasture irrigation continued until September 
21st, and that District staff continued to work with Mosquito Control District staff to reduce 
runoff.  He stated that sludge sampling was performed in preparation for sludge transfer to 
the Dedicated Land Disposal site (DLD), and that Custom Tractor Services regraded and 
leveled the surface at the DLD.  He concluded, stating that approximately 27.7MG (million 
gallons) of reclaimed water were applied to the pastures in September. 
 
The General Manager commended Jeff Boheim, Russell Farmery, John Bailey, and staff for 
their hard work in keeping the Reclamation facilities operating smoothly since the retirement 
of Field Services Manager Steve Krautheim in late 2017.   
 
The Deputy General Manager stated that he agreed with the General Manager’s comments 
regarding those individuals who have worked so diligently at the Reclamation facilities. 
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS: 
 
- Receive Capital Projects Update, September 2018.  The Deputy General Manager 
provided an update of the current capital projects involved with the Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) at the District.  He also provided an update on the Cogeneration/Alternative 



Novato Sanitary District  
Board Meeting Minutes 
Meeting Date: October 8, 2018 
 

 
Page 6 of 6 

Energy project.  He stated that the District’s consultant, Woodard and Curran, had 
submitted the Draft Co-generation Evaluation Technical Memo Update, and that staff is 
currently evaluating the recommendations.  He continued, stating that District and Veolia 
staff are working with Enovity, an energy services company, to evaluate optimization/energy 
savings measures eligible through PG&E’s on bill financing (OBF) program.   
 
Director Mariani stated that she appreciated the Capital Projects Update information, stating 
that the monthly reports were very helpful. 
 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND REQUESTS:   
 
- North Bay Watershed Association (NBWA) meeting, October 5, 2018.  Director Miller 
discussed his attendance at the NBWA meeting which was held at the Petaluma 
Community Center on October 5th.  He stated that Lori Lewis led the group in a strategic 
planning effort, looking at the past and the future of NBWA. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
- Reports: 

• The General Manager attended the North Bay Watershed Association (NBWA) 
meeting on October 5, 2018.  Lori Lewis, facilitator of the NBWA strategic 
planning effort, led the group in the first of a two-part strategic planning effort.  

• Recent State legislation by Senator McGuire (SB929) requires that every 
independent special district maintain an Internet Web site.  The Novato Sanitary 
District already complies with this mandate. 
 

- Announcements: 

• The next Special Board meeting will be held on Tuesday, November 13, 2018 at 
5:30 p.m.  This meeting will also include a Public Hearing to set calendar year 
(CY) 2019 maximum allowable solid waste rates. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Board, President 
Peters adjourned the meeting at 6:56 p.m.  
 
 
          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
               
          Sandeep Karkal 

Secretary 
 
Julie Hoover, Recording 


